City of North Little Rock
rLR Board of Zoning Adjustment Agenda
Thursday, February 23, 2023 - 1:30 PM
Conference Room B — City Services Building — 120 Main Street, NLR, AR 72114

Call to Order -

Roll Call and finding of a Quorum -

Approval of Minutes - January 26, 2023
Public Hearing Items -

1. BOA #2023-03, 8110 Baucum Pike Rd, NLR, AR a variance request from the area provision of Section 5.7(¢)

to allow an increase in tower height from an existing tower height of 146-feet to a proposed height of 166-feet

2. BOA 2023-06, 615 W 29" St, NLR, AR, a variance to allow the placement of a front yard fence within a C3
zone (Section 5.11.5)

3. BOA 2023-07, 4900 JFK Blvd, NLR, AR, a variance to allow the encroachment into the front setback along
JFK Blvd for a proposed 7-Brew Coffee within a C2 zone (Section 4.2.4) a setback of

\ dministrative —
Public Comment -

rnm -

Reminder - - Turn off cell phones
- Board of Adjustment Hearing procedures on back of the Agenda
- Visitors sign-in with both name and address

Next Board of Zoning Adjustment Hearing Filing Deadline March 1, 2023 Hearing Date March 30, 2023

For the Board to grant a variance the applicant must first establish a hardship. A hardship should not be created
by the owner, it should be due to unique circumstances existing on the property. For example, it must be
demonstrated a strict enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance would prohibit the development of the property or no
reasonable use of the property can be made.



N-R NORTH LITTLE ROCK
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT
HEARING PROCEDURES
(1/1/2019)

Order of the Public Hearing: The regularly scheduled public hearing is generally held on the last
Thursday of each month at 1:30 PM in the City Council Chambers, 300 Main Street, North Little
Rock, AR. All meetings are open to the public. Typical hearings begin with roll call and finding of
a quorum, approval of the previous meeting minutes, correspondence and staff reports, committee
reports, unfinished business, new business, public comment and adjournment.

Voting: There are five members of the Board. A quorum consists of three members present.
“Robert’s Rules of Order” apply unless the Board has outlined alternative procedures. All business
must be approved by a minimum of three votes.

Procedure to allow a person to address or approach the Board:

1. No person shall address or approach the Board without first being recognized by the Chair.

2. After being recognized, each person shall state their name and address for the record.
3. All questions and remarks shall be addressed through the Chair.
4. All remarks shall be addressed to the Board as a whole and not to any individual Board member.

5. When a group of citizens are present to speak on an item, a spokesperson may be selected by the
group to address the Board. If multiple individuals of the group desires to speak, the Chair may
limit each presentation to three minutes.

6. No person other than members of the Board and the person having the floor shall be permitted to
enter into any discussion, either directly, indirectly or through a Board member, without
permission of the Chair.

7. Once the question has been called, no person in the audience shall address the Board on the matter
at hand without first securing permission to do so by a majority vote of the Board.

8. At least 24-hours prior to the public hearing, anyone wishing to submit exhibits for the record
shall provide staff with copies of the exhibits for each Board member, one copy of the exhibit for
staff to place in the permanent file and one copy of the exhibit for the legal department.

9. At least 24-hours prior to the public hearing, anyone wishing to read a statement into the record
shall provide staff with a written copy of the statement.



North Little Rock Board of Zoning Adjustment
Minute Record Summary — January 26, 2023

Chairman Tom Brown called the meeting of the North Little Rock Board of Zoning Adjustment
to order at 1:30 P.M. in Conference Room B of the City Services Building, 120 Main Street, North
Little Rock, AR. Roll call found a quorum to be present; a quorum being three members present.

Members Present

Mr. Tom Brown, Chairman
Mr. Mike Abele

Mr. Gardner Burton

Mr. Steve Sparr

Members Absent

Mr, Tim Giattina, Vice-Chair ’
Staff Present

Ms. Donna James, Assistant Director of Planning

Mr. Tracy Spillman, City Planner

Ms. Marie Miller, City Attorey

Others Present

Stacy Light
Mark Spaight
Nick Tucker
Eric Maxwell
Old Business

None

Administrative

Mr. Sparr formed a motion to excusing Mr. Giattina. Mr. Burton provided a second. All members
voted in the affirmative, the motion was approved.

Approval of Minutes

Mr. Sparr formed a motion to approve the minutes from December 29, 2022. Mr. Burton seconded
the motion. Chairman Brown called for a vote. All members voted in the affirmative, the motion
was approved.



North Little Rock Board of Zoning Adjustment
Minute Record — January 26, 2023
Page 2 of 3

Public Hearing Items —

BOA 2023-04, 2612 Gribble Street, NLR, AR, a variance request from the area provision of
Section 4.3.3: I1 Office Warehouse District (C) Area Requirements Table to allow a reduced side
yard setback along the western perimeter reducing the setback from 30-feet required to 11.52-
feet. Chairman Brown called the item and requested the applicant come forward and provide
their hardship.

Mr. Nick Tucker addressed the Board stating the hardship was the owner desired to place an
addition to the western side of the building which encroached into the side yard setback for 11
zoned property. He stated the company was growing and the addition was necessary to allow for
the additional space to continue to grow the company. He stated the addition could not be placed
south of the existing building due to the location of the floodway.

Chairman Brown questioned if the hardship was the topography of the site. Mr. Tucker stated
the hardship was the topography of the site and the inability to provide the addition to the south
of the existing building.

Mr. Mark Spaight addressed the Board questioning any new and or redevelopment in the area. He
stated he owned property in the area and questioned if the City had any plans for redevelopment
or growth in the area. Chairman Brown stated Mr. Spaight could get with staff after the hearing
and they could address his questions.

Chairman Brown questioned if any of the Board members had any questions or comments. He
then questioned if anyone else in the audience wanted to address the Board. There being none,
he stated he would entertain a motion for approval of the variance request. Mr. Sparr provided a
motion for approval of the item based on the applicants stated hardship. Mr. Burton provided a
second to the motion. By a roll call vote, all members voted in the affirmative. The motion was
approved (4/0).

BOA #2022-05, 404 Chimney Rock Drive, NLR, AR a variance request from the area provision
of Section 5.20 to allow an increased height of a front yard retaining wall allowing the height to
taper from 7-feet in height to 2-feet in height. Chairman Brown called the item and requested the
applicant come forward and provide their hardship.

Mr. Eric Maxwell addressed the Board on the merits of the request. He stated the hardship was
the topography of the site. He stated there was a significant elevation change from north to south
on the lot. He stated the height of the retaining wall was to allow steps to be constructed to serve
the house. He stated the wall was a must to stabilize the area for the steps.

Mr. Abele questioned if the wall was a loop wall. Mr. Maxwell stated the wall would be
incorporated into the site as a landscape feature but the purpose of the wall was to stabilize the
area for the steps.



North Little Rock Board of Zoning Adjustment
Minute Record — January 26, 2023
Page 3 of 3

Chairman Brown questioned if any of the Board members had any questions or comments. He
then questioned if anyone else in the audience wanted to address the Board. There being none,
he stated he would entertain a motion for approval of the variance request. Mr. Sparr provided a
motion for approval of the item based on the applicants stated hardship. Mr. Burton provided a
second to the motion. By a roll call vote, all members voted in the affirmative. The motion was
approved (4/0).

BOA #2023-03, 8110 Baucum Pike Rd, NLR, AR a variance request from the area provision of
Section 5.7(¢) to allow an increase in tower height from an existing tower height of 146-feet to a
proposed height of 166-feet. Chairman Brown called the item and requested the applicant come
forward and provide their hardship.

Ms. Stacy Light addressed the Commission on behalf of the tower owner, AT&T. She stated the additional
height was necessary to allow for cell service coverage in the area. She stated the area was deficient in
coverage for this area of the City. She stated the company had been granted approval by the FAA for the
placement of the additional height.

Chairman Brown stated he felt there should be conditions placed on the proposed variance to provide
multiple blinking lights on the top of the tower and a back-up power source to ensure the lights remained
on at all times. He stated he felt this was necessary for safety.

Ms. Light stated the company had been granted approval for the height of the tower without the top
beacon. She stated since the FAA did not require the light her owner did not feel it necessary to place the
light on the tower.

Chairman Brown questioned the willingness to place the beacons on top of the tower. Ms. Light stated
she would need to contact her owner to discuss the requirement. Chairman Brown questioned if she would
like to postpone the item to the next hearing. Ms. Light stated this was her desire. By voice vote all voted
in the affirmative for postponement of the item to the February hearing date. (4/0)

Public Comment and Adjournment

There being no further business before the Board, and on the motion of Mr. Sparr and seconded
provided by Mr. Abele, and by consent of all members present, the meeting was adjourn at 1:45
PM.

Approved on this_23" day of _February. 2023

Tom Brown, Chairman



BOA 2023-03
December 29, 2022 - Postponed to 2/23/2023

Variance Requested: a variance request from the area provision of Section 5.7(E) to allow an increase in
tower height for an existing tower currently with a height at 146-feet and proposed with a new height of 166-feet

Location of the Request: 8110 Baucum Pike Road, NLR, AR

Legal Description of the Property: Lot 1 Spanish Grant 2497 to the City of North Little Rock,
Pulaski County, AR

Owner: William Watt
Applicant: SMJ International, David Connell

Present Use of the Property: Cell tower

Present Zoning of the Property: 12

Site Characteristics:  The site is developed with a communications tower located on the western side of
I 440 along the entrance ramp from Baucum Pike. There is a liquor store to the north of the site and
undeveloped property to the south and west of the site.

Surrounding Zoning and Uses

Direction Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North 12 Liquor Store
South 12 Undeveloped

East N/A Interstate 440
West 12 Undeveloped

Justification: The applicant’s justification is presented in an attached letter.

Staff Analysis:

The Board of Zoning Adjustment approved a height variance for a communications tower at this location
at their May 31, 1995 hearing. The approval allowed the placement of a 150-foot tall monopole.

The applicant is now requesting an additional height variance to increase the overall height of the tower to
166-feet. Section 5.7 of the Zoning Ordinance governs all wireless communication facilities not defined
as “small cell” or those communication facilities located within a dedicated or prescriptive street right of
way or easement. Small cell facilities are governed by a separate ordinance. The general requirements
applying to a communication tower or wireless communication facility are:



BOA 2023-03
December 29, 2022 - to Postponed 2/23/2023

» Require co-location of wireless communication facilities of competing providers on communication
towers.

» Require any wireless service provider or entity installing a new communication tower to make
appropriate provisions to allow for the future addition of at least one other provider on a private
rental basis.

> Require the wireless service provider or entity installing a new communication tower to agree to
refrain from generating unreasonable obstacles to such collocation arrangements.

» Requests for communication towers outside of the permitted Zoning Districts shall require a
rezoning or a Special Use.

> Any communication tower permitted in a Zoning District over 75-feet in height, will be directed to
the Board of Zoning Adjustment before the request may be reviewed by the Design Review
Committee.

» New communication towers shall be reviewed through the Site Plan Review process after any
necessary variances.

» Communication towers shall be subject to all other applicable local regulations and shall be treated
as the principal building on the lot on which it is located.

The development criteria are as follows:

> A reasonable separation of individual communication towers shall be required by maintaining a
physical separation of 2,000-feet between communication towers.

The tower shall be located on a platted lot not less than 5,625 square feet.

The tower shall be located within a fenced area. The fence shall be 6-feet in height.

The tower shall be located in the center of the lot.

All accessory structures and buildings shall be placed within a fenced area and at least 15-feet from
any fence.

A planted buffer with a minimum depth of 10-feet with plant materials to reach a height of 20-feet
at maturity shall be required around the exterior perimeter of the fence.

V VVVV

The property is zoned 12 which allows the placement of a communications tower. To allow the building
permit to be issued the applicant must request and be granted the additional height proposed for the
communications tower. The applicant has indicated the additional height is necessary to provide coverage
to the North Little Rock customer base.

A hardship is a special circumstance, which makes it very difficult for a particular project to meet the Zoning
Ordinance requirement. Special circumstances are not interpreted to be something intangible, such as lack
of knowledge of the code or misinformation at the time of purchase or construction. A hardship generally
occurs when the physical characteristics of a property are such that it cannot be developed as pemmitted by
the zoning ordinance. A hardship may be created by surroundings, shape or topographical conditions
particular to the specific property. A hardship cannot be self-imposed, or the result of the property owners
own action.

Board to Consider:

1. Is the variance for which the variance is sought due to unique circumstances existing on the property,
the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property, and are not due to or the result

2



BOA 2023-03
December 29, 2022 - Postponed to 2/23/2023

of general conditions in the district in which the property is located? Possibly, the height is necessary
to achieve the required coverage area and demands the height of the tower as requested by the applicant.
Does the variance substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent conforming
property in the same district? No, variances have been granted for additional heights in communication
towers when the topography of the land is such the additional height if necessary to achieve the desired
coverage area.

Will approval of the variance alter the essential character of the district? No, the communication tower
will be placed in a manner to not alter the character of the area.

Will approval of the variance weaken the general intent and purpose of the land use and zoning plan?
No, land use and zoning will remain unchanged.

Will the approval of the variance be in harmony with the spirit of the ordinance? Possibly, variances
have been granted to allow for communication towers to increase the height when the trees or terrain
have necessitated the additional height.

Will the approval of the variance adversely affect public health, safety, and general welfare? No, the
approval will have no impact on the health, safety and welfare of the area.

Approval Allows:

1.

2.

Approval will allow an existing communication tower to increase the height from the current 146-feet
to the proposed 166-feet in height.

Approval of this variance request is valid for 6-months from date of approval. If a building permit is
not secured within the 6-month period, approval becomes invalid unless, the Board of Zoning
Adjustment has approved a request for a time extension. All requests for time extension must be made
prior to the expiration of the Board’s approval.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of the request to allow the increase in tower height as proposed by the applicant
subject to the following conditions:

» Multiple blinking lights be located on top of the tower to operate 24-hours per day, 7-days per week

and 365-days per year;

A letter from the FAA approving the tower height and location;

The tower be of monopole type only;

All abandoned or unused towers and associated facilities shall be removed within 12-months of the

cessation of operations at the site. In the event that a tower is not removed within 12 months of the

cessation of operations at a site, the tower and associated facilities may be removed by the City and

the costs of removal assessed against the property.

» The fence around the communication tower site must be maintained and a minimum of 6-feet in
height; and

» Any dead, diseased or missing landscaping within the required planted buffer be replaced around
the exterior perimeter of the fence.

Y VY



Nerth Little Reck
Board of Adjustment

E

1 inch = 40 feet

BOA CASE #2023-03

Date: 12/19/2022 20 40




Nerth Little Reck
Jeard of Adjustment

| BOA Case #2023-03
8110 Baucum Pike

To allow an increased height of an
existing communications tower.

BOA CASE #2023-03 1iiich = 200N5et .
L L I 1Fee

Date: 12/19/2022 0 50 100 200 300 400




0 10e-s

‘NOISIAZN HIFNNN 13IHE

FU40ud NOLLYOIHIO0N

SUuTnzien | ON@OTaLY
O | hiyuo suva

‘BNOLLVOLICON 30 NOUITIROD LS04 HOLOTHINDD AS NOLLVOCT

B IHOEN TWRIDRHA 3HL OL GITTVLSNIR] ® NOLYTIVLSNI SNRNG
QINON A 38 AN, BIKO
"ENOLLYOLIGON 40 NOLLVTTILLEN HLM STHIJHALNI INSWJINDI

=
* WO BIMOINVORENVWING ©A ANDS 2 OL JUY BLTINS3Y
"NOLLYIELLED 1 T2AN LON HAMA HOLIISSN 0TaM Q30
¥ A3 SOOHIIN LEN AD QNY ATIVANGIA 031933 26 OL TuY
(UnNASTNS NIHM STTIN FLVTd WINIIIILS ONY CTIM ADNYL 35vE 2
XTEMOTIV LON 51 0000 ONINOVLS "LIVHS 3TQ4ONIN
SQIBLN0 QIVIVLEN 38 OL XVOI ALTIECH ALY 4380400 b

‘c

LB DL HY ‘N0 TUAN HLUON
TNl Av3vE DoLE
“3Ruaav ALz

SYSNWIYY

(LL02s) wnanva
SN LS 24V

5186
RUIRANN U8 D1V

TR G931 T IrasiisHy
_Ava A8 NOILIRIOSI0 A

v
Y
v
v
v

L
MSRLINY HA T NO NOIBAIA LS3LYY BHL A0 Q30 IBHE
I DAY IHL 5 J0MeTiS) H0jbid ANY SIONYINISI]

36 TS NOLLVONENd O 384 ML HEMOL NVDIN3AY 40
ALMELIGHA BALTIONE 1 TV SIALIS VO BINBANULSH Y
HOLLYS(ATDdS SHIMV.ANOSSY S MOVINY SONIWY 2TIHL

AVADRSY AINIORS boaC
277 'S3DNMIS HIMOL OLY
<HRMOL NVOREWY

A4

ATNO JORIALXT
NOLNBINLSI XY0D
{ate) oD
ONIISIXS

N (=S

i
N

Lo T |
i

“SHRAIU NOLLVTIVASNI B0d
9039 OL 109-8 BLSEHB IS
“FLLOL S TANOYE
$00Y QVIYHL TTV 028
OVIMAG (5] TIVISHI

STVAIQ NOUVTIVASNI 04
6098 O $0i-S Slaan3 538

'8Pk O FLo T3 WO ——

SO0 avENHL TTV ©08
ovoIMAR 1) TTVASNI

DYAMAG () TIVLSNI

*SIMLEA NOUYTIVLSNI 5O #0ag ¥ L0rE

SLITHE 338 'WeH) OL 4’90 573 AOUS
[FIVREINI S

M 3did SL80 X 0 TH
NOISNELIGE 14 02 TTVASNL

MIIA NOLLYAITT Y3MOL

F=n

it i
[
CLE
FIRR: S

Bantonws 4o wedloal

Filac]
LNOWD3S
Zwna
ZNOLD3S
LU
ENOLI3S
TTEE
P NOLLD3S
il
INOILI3AS
(34NUINK19 40 401 a350d0ud]
oe8l A

AIB0N LSLY




e

24

SM]INTERNATIONAL

49030 Pontiac Ttrail, Suite 100
Wixom, MI 48393

www.smj-lic.com
December 7, 2022

Donna James, AICP

Assistant Director of Planning
City of North Little Rock

120 Main Street

North Little Rock, AR 72114-2134
501-975-8835

Re: AT&T antenna colocation on existing cell tower
8100 Baucum Pike, North Little Rock, AR 72117 98152

Encl:  Check for $170.00 for Board of Zoning Adjustment hearing

Ms. James:

Please find enclosed a check for $170 for the Board of Zoning Adjustment hearing on December 29, 2022.

Please let me know as soon as possible if any additional information is required.

Attn: David Connell Phone: (630) 464-5893
49030 Pontiac Trail, Suite 100 Fax: (888) 745-4719
Wixom, MI 48393 Email: dconnell@smij-llc.com

As always, feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. ! look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

Daoid Conne¥

David Connell

SM INTERNATIONAL
630-464-5893

49030 Pontiac Trail » Suite 100 « Wixom ¢ Michigan » U.S.A » 48393 ‘ P: (616) 745-4777 | F: (888) 745-4719
691 Quellette Avenue » Windsor » Ontario » Canada = N9A 4]4 ] P: (519) 915-1349 I F: (888) 745-4719



BOA 2023-06
February 28, 2023

Variance Requested: a variance to allow the placement of a front yard fence within a C3 zone
(Section 5.11.5)

Location of the Request: 615 W 29" St, NLR, AR,

Owner/Applicant: Chubby Little Groundhogs, LLC

Present Use of the Property: Office

Present Zoning of the Property: C2

Site Characteristics: The site contains a single story office building and associated parking. The
area is predominately office uses. To the north is I-40. To the east and southeast are hotels and to
the south is an office building currently under renovation for City of North Little Rock offices.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses '
North NA 1-40

South | C3 B B B Office |
East C3 Hotel

West C3 Office-Warehouse

Justification: The applicant’s justification is presented in an attached letter.

Staff Analysis: The applicant is seeking a variance to allow the placement of a wrought iron style
fence within the front yard. The applicant is proposing to place a fence along with a gated entrance
to the property to secure the site during non-business hours. The applicant states the property is
located below the Levy on-ramp and south of 1-40. The applicant states prior to closing on the
property a homeless encampment was located behind the property along the I-40 right of way.

The applicant states the existing perimeter fence will be replaced. He states a new 6-foot decorative
wrought iron fence will be placed in the front yard along with a security gate to allow the site to be
secure and for the safety of the employees at the site. The gate will be placed a minimum of 40-feet
from the property line along W 29% Street.

A hardship is a special circumstance, which makes it very difficult for a particular project to meet the
Zoning Ordinance requirement. Special circumstances are not interpreted to be something intangible,
such as lack of knowledge of the code or misinformation at the time of purchase or construction. A
hardship generally occurs when the physical characteristics of a property are such that it cannot be
developed as permitted by the zoning ordinance. A hardship may be created by surroundings, shape



BOA 2023-06
February 28, 2023

or topographical conditions particular to the specific property. A hardship cannot be self-imposed,
or the result of the property owners own action.

Board to Consider:

1. Is the variance for which the variance is sought due to unique circumstances existing on the
property, the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property, and are not due
to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property is located? No, the
request is to allow the placement of the fence within the front yard area.

2. Does the variance substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent conforming
property in the same district? No, there will be no impact on adjoining properties with the
placement of the fence as proposed.

3. Will approval of the variance alter the essential character of the district? No, the character of the
area will not change.

4. Will approval of the variance weaken the general intent and purpose of the land use and zoning
plan? No, the land use and zoning will remain unchanged.

5. Will the approval of the variance be in harmony with the spirit of the ordinance? No, the zoning
ordinance specifically states front yard fences are not allowed.

6. Will the approval of the variance adversely affect public health, safety, and general welfare? No,
there will be no impact on public health, safety or welfare of the area.

Approval Allows:

1. Approval will allow the placement of a 6-foot wrought iron style fence within the front yard along
with a security gate. The gate will be setback a minimum of 40-feet from the property line along
W 29" Street.

2. Approval of this variance request is valid for 180-days from date of approval. If a building permit

is not secured within the 180-day period, approval becomes invalid unless, the Board of Zoning
Adjustment has approved a request for a time extension. All requests for time extension must be
made prior to the expiration of the Board’s approval.



Board of Adjustment

e

BOA CASE #2023-06 11inch = 50 feet
Date: 2/9/2023 mgeet




Nerth Little Reek
_ Board ef Adjustment .

BOA Case #2023-06
615 W. 29th St.

To allow a front yard fence. ,

s

1 inch = 100 feet
BOA CASE #2023-06 -
) [ I I 1Fee :
Date: 2/9/2023 0 50 100 200 User: jhale




az
e

HINNOD NO
3 wis3aad

. ..J— l.\l..i\\!‘\.\l.\.\\\
INOHSTTL

—

e A.\..‘..\\l\\. -
B i 3
e ) - S =
u..H..H.\.\\ \V\Wtﬂ\ﬂﬂ\\\ﬂ@\“\ ) e et A :ﬂ@ 6l aw.w
@. ma xS
.\\\\\I‘\\\l‘\‘\\.\‘u\\-ﬂ_ :
- - .\\l
.lllll\.\.\l\lll..li.
-
| |
| | y |
] T, T " ) “~ n\.{. ) _
R = u !
| s ﬁm 1 SM3INYIG _: ~ i i
oo | o\ Kﬂ\ 330N - | __ ! _
| , [ J| 2= WUE ” E ‘
T 1
| - | oo 9 -
. 3134980 “ ot |
z * / 2 . e
2 | _ 2
| —— — - J/ o
_ W S Gee Fy : =
_ 3 ﬁ wle_ IS 02z et g NS Ly
i \ ALIAONOY” O ! _ T
= { 0383A0D ! -
m B T —— =
4 3 a %
b, ]
ﬁ % g! - <
1 h 5
[} w7 ~
= =
& ©
- e = !
L 2\ o |z x i
_J.: m }
L e e T, 1 b
2 & _
= 1]
o ) _
” m R X
o pil _
2 £ LOT ONIMaYH 17 !
! . H .
0. OMTTING S I L IVHasY ]
3 WIDHINAGD gzl
IPA 020NLS ) !
AHOLS -1 t %
i Dt ! s
@_ ‘
& — X €0 ANOZ
e e 1 =% 21 3SHIAA-N ALDIMG
& o mt 00£6000GIZNEE # 1308V
I
m g8 | | \ Zt
| 2 |
@ ; ©of , | x
_ AL3YONOD STy [T
J383A00 P
~ b _\ 7
i " m«
: ) i
| = P
A6°01L . 4 1
4 56§ . e
" YR -
_ L7l :l g\\ =X
(W I o :
of \ | |
~ SSVa9 )
R B
. A i nU
] , S
/ [
H - v )
i
! _.,
i & r
i
{
! 107 ONINUVY LIVHASY S — )
ANITNO
}l3oNa
| —
. | N
e
X |
bzgl 5eE s .
ST m N
g ) ] } i
& LHOJUYD WAININNTY 3| [BamsB ! | h




James, Donna

To: Bob Miller
Subject: RE: 615 W. 29th St.

Donna James

Assistant Director of Planning
120 Main Street,

NLR, AR 72114

Pease accept this letter as a request for a zoning variance. Our office building is located at 615
West 29t St., North Little Rock, AR. We are asking for a variance based on safety and security
reasons. The property prior to our closing had a homeless encampment located behind it. The
property also sits below the Levy on-ramp and south of Interstate 40.

We are requesting a variance for a decorative six foot wrought iron fence in the front yard
with a security gate with set-back as shown in the drawing. We would also like it to be noted
that the fence in the back will now run along the property line and will be improved to the
height of eight feet.

This property is registered with the city and secretary of state as Chubby Little Groundhogs,
LLC.

Sincerely,

Robert Bob Miller



BOA 2023-07
February 23, 2023

Variance Requested: a variance to allow the encroachment into the front setback along JFK Blvd
for a proposed 7-Brew Coffee within a C2 zone (Section 4.2.4)

Location of the Request: 4900 JFK Blvd, NLR, AR,

Owner/Applicant: 7-Brew Coffee

Present Use of the Property: Vacant Bank Branch

Present Zoning of the Propertyv: C2

Site Characteristics: The site is a former bank location. The site has a driveway from McCain Blvd
and a drive located on JFK Blvd. There are duplex/triplex units located to the east of the site and
non-residential, commercial and office uses, located to the north, south and west of the site.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses

North C2 | Retail & Office

South C2 Restaurant & Retail Strip Center
East R4 Duplexes and Triplexes

West C2 Restaurant, Retail & Office

Justification: The applicant’s justification is presented in an attached letter.

Staff Analysis: The applicant is seeking a variance to allow an encroachment into the building
setback along JFK Blvd. The property is zoned C2 which typically requires a minimum front yard
setback of 40-feet and a minimum exterior side yard setback of 40-feet. The minimum rear yard
setback required is 20-feet and the minimum side yard setback of 15-feet is required when adjacent
to a residential use or zoning district. The applicant states in their letter, 7-Brew is requesting a
variance for a drive thru bypass lane for a proposed new facility. The plan indicates a 31.45-foot
setback from the property line along JFK Blvd resulting in an 8.55-foot encroachment into the
required setback.

The desire of 7-Brew corporate and the franchisee ownership is all traffic to the business be located
on the property and not adversely affect the traffic flow on city streets. Specifically, 7-Brew desires
to prevent overflow of vehicles onto McCain and allow full circulation around the site along the east
side so vehicles may pick-up their drinks and drive around the building to exit north on JFK Blvd.
Additionally, the bypass lane on the east side can often be blocked by delivery trucks, dumpster pick-
ups and/or peak time vehicular traffic on site. The additional bypass lane creates a safer layout for
customers and reduces any impact on the intersection traffic at McCain.



BOA 2023-07
February 23, 2023

A hardship is a special circumstance, which makes it very difficult for a particular project to meet the
Zoning Ordinance requirement. Special circumstances are not interpreted to be something intangible,
such as lack of knowledge of the code or misinformation at the time of purchase or construction. A
hardship generally occurs when the physical characteristics of a property are such that it cannot be
developed as permitted by the zoning ordinance. A hardship may be created by surroundings, shape
or topographical conditions particular to the specific property. A hardship cannot be self-imposed,
or the result of the property owners own action.

Board to Consider:

1. Is the variance for which the variance is sought due to unique circumstances existing on the
property, the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property, and are not due
to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property is located? No, the
applicant is proposing to redevelop the site with a new drive thru coffee business which does not
meet the minimum setback along JFK Blvd.

2. Does the variance substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent conforming
property in the same district? No, the variance is to allow an encroachment into the building
setback along JFK Blvd. Similar variances have been approved for businesses located in the area.

3. Will approval of the variance alter the essential character of the district? No, the character of the
area will remain unchanged.

4. Will approval of the variance weaken the general intent and purpose of the land use and zoning
plan? No, the land use and zoning will remain unchanged.

5. Will the approval of the variance be in harmony with the spirit of the ordinance? No, setbacks
within zoning districts are established to allow for uniformity within development areas.

6. Will the approval of the variance adversely affect public health, safety, and general welfare? No,
there will be no effect on public health, safety and the general welfare of the area.

Approval Allows:

1. Approval will allow an encroachment of a canopy within the setback along JFK Blvd placed at
31.45-feet from the property line resulting in an 8.55-foot encroachment.

2. Approval of this variance request is valid for 180-days from date of approval. If a building permit

is not secured within the 180-day period, approval becomes invalid unless, the Board of Zoning
Adjustment has approved a request for a time extension. All requests for time extension must be
made prior to the expiration of the Board’s approval.



Nerth Little Reck
B@&E@ @f’ A@j;ustmem

BOA CASE #2023-07 Tinghi= 0S¢t
Date: 2/9/2023

20 40




Nerth Little Reck
Board of Adjusm@mt

BOA Case #2023 07

4900 John F. Kennedy Bivd.

| To allow an encroachment into V'
the front building setback.

BOA CASE #2023-07 1 inch = 100 feet
g — 1Feet

Date: 2/9/2023 0 50 100 200

User: jhale




SEVEN 7/ BREW

DRIVE THRU COFFEE >»>»>

January 24, 2023

Board of Zoning Adjustment
City of North Little Rock
120 Main Street

North Little Rock, AR 72114

RE: 7Brew Variance Request
4900 John F. Kennedy Blvd.

To whom it may concern,

This letter is regarding the submittal made by 7Brew, in respect of a variance for a drive thru bypass
lane. It is the desire of 7Brew corporate and the franchisee ownership that all traffic to the business be
located on their property and not adversely affect the traffic flow in the city streets. Specifically, 7Brew
desires to prevent overflow of vehicles onto McCain and allow full circulation around the site along the
east side so vehicles may pick up their drinks and drive around the building to exit North on JFK Bivd.
Additionally, this bypass lane on the east side can often be blocked by delivery trucks, dumpster pick ups
and or peak time vehicular traffic on site. This additional bypass lane will create a safer layout for
customers and reduce any impact on the intersection traffic at McCain.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Brandon Sebald

Brew Crew

7Brew Franchisee



GUZMAN HENRY
PARCEL ID: 33ND181500500
ZONE:

: RA
LOT: 4 BLOCK: 200
0.20 ACRES

JFK BY MCCAIN INVESTMENT LLC
PARCEL ID: 33NQ181500600
ZONE:

c2
LOT: 5 BLOCK: 200
0.28 ACRES

T

NEISEN WAYNE I
PARCEL ID: 33N0B1500400
ZONE: R4 !
LOT: 3 RLOCK: 200
0.23 ACRES f

«(C2E

JBB CYPRESS LLC
PARCEL ID: 33N0181507500

e, o
. e s by i
IAY pe T oy
; )
i \
:
/ /~ FIRE HYDRANT
{ : /
l !
RED DOG MANAGEMENT LLC RED DOG MANAGEMENT LLC
PARCEL ID: 33N0161500300 PARCEL ID: 33N0181500200 /
ZONE: R ZONE: Ra /
LOT: 2 BLOCK 200 LOT: 1 BLOGK 200 |
024 ACRES 026ACRES |
= § EXISTING
«Czs ; P /" 2WAY ENTRANGE
Al
]
3
H
E PROPOSED . EXISTING
REMOTE COOLER WATER
S
~ GONCRETE SIDEWALK

BUILDING WICANOPY .

8 LANDSCAPING BUFFER

JOHNF. KERNEDY BOULEVARD

EXISTING
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

LA 8LV

cPH

cPRY

s AR GA

MC

[ TP

PULASKI COUNTY

)
@

H. SCALE: 1" =20 www.arkonecall.com

LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

PLAT OF LOT'D", BLOCK 200, PARKHILL ADDITION
(BEING A REPLAT OF LANDS FORMERLY PLATTED AS "C"
200, PARK HILL ADONTION)

DEDICATION OF A PORTION OF JOHN F. KENNEDY BLVD.
N THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK

ANDIN

8E 1/4 SE 1/4 & NE 1/4 SE 1/4 SECTION t4
TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST
PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS.

FEMA:
MAPE: 05116003426
PANEL 3426

DATE: 07.06.2015
AREA OF MINIMAL FLOOD HAZARD ZONE X.

PROPOSED USE:

RESTAURANT WITH DRIVE THRU.
PARKING SPACES: 14 VEMICLES

ZONING:
ZONING: €2 COMMERCIAL

BUILDING AND LOT DATA:
PROJECT FOOTPRINT ~ 0.75 ACRES
PROPOSED BUALDING (1 STORY) -RETAIL = S10SQFT.
PROPOSED BUILDING (HEIGHT) - 18.67FT.

REMOTE COOLER = 27SSQFT.

Arkansas One Call

& 84, BLOCK

NT

- SPRINGFIELD, MO 65807 - P {417} 530-4321

ARCHITECTURAL CORPORATION MISSOURI LICENSE NUMBER A-2010011427

E
Ak
O
4
i
>
i
0
+
ol
O
o
L]
al

2101 W CHESTERFIELD BLVD, SUITE A101

ENGINEER OF RECORD:

NAME: SHAWN W BARRY

LICENSE NO. AR fPE-16815

PROJECT NUMBER:
22172 7BHLA

REVISION:

4900 J.F K.
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
PARK HILL SUBDIVISION

7 BREW COFFEE
NORTH LITTLE ROCK 03

Knowwhath below.
Call before you dig.
Ol

1-800-482-8998

‘i§ & ASSOCIATES

1550 E. REPUBLIC ROAD
SPRINGFIELD, MC B5804
Ph: 417-888-0645  Fax: 417-888-0657
weww lothassociales, com.
ARS 1008
© 2008 To and Asocain o,

REVIEW

SITE PLAN

DATE: JANUARY 31,2023




* e

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - FRONT

were

PigemeraL.

0

- Bggen

o TEIEDIAL

- Ciauiu

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - BACK

renia

Exterlor Finish Legend

Matat Siding
GreyMetal Siding

Brake Metad Foscla

Matle Black Mutal
Saffit Parets

Zinc Gray Brake Metal
Brake betal Cap

B
i

s v bso-asz

ST [1C

211 W LAILS LWIILLY BLYD S0 L AT
ARCHITEZTURAL CORPORATION ARKAISAS LICENSE HUMBER COA-0110:

101 SPUINGE I LU, M axBu.

0

0

STANDARD PROTOTYPE z

7 BREW COFFEE
ANYWHERE, USA

ARCHITFCT OF RECORD:
NAME; ADAMKREHER
LICENSEND, 2011002764

PROJECT NUMBER:
220637BLM

REVISION:

A2.1

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

DATE: APRIL 15,2022




W T

m.v.a.__.‘m_.m_Oz ELEVATION - RIGHT SIDE

@wﬁmz_g ELEVATION - LEFT SIDE

Exterlor Finish Legend

w
>
w2
il o P
[ n
o 3
O Q. m
50 :
~ <
O
Z
<
T
wn

NAME: ADAMKREHER
LICENSENO. 2011002764

PROJECT NUMBER:
2206378LM

REVISIDN:

A2.2

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS
DATE: APRIL 15,2022




